

MEASURE A: Relating to conforming the Charter to the general laws of the State of Texas

Article I Incorporation; Form of Government, Corporate and General Powers

Sec. 5. - Liability of the City.

The City of Bellaire shall not be liable for personal injury or property loss or damage from any cause, including the negligence of City officials or City employees, in the performance of governmental functions, ~~including the operation of the water system, the collection and disposition of garbage, the sewer system, the fire department, or any other governmental office, department or agency created by or operating under this Charter except as set forth in the Texas Civil Practices and Remedies Code, Title 5, Governmental Liability, Chapter 101 tort claims.~~

Sec. 6. - Eminent Domain.

- (a) General Provisions. The City shall have the right, power and authority to exercise the power of eminent domain when necessary or desirable to carry out any of the powers conferred upon it by this Charter, or by the Constitution or laws of the State of Texas, except as provided in subsection (b) and (c). ~~In all cases where the City seeks to exercise the power of eminent domain, it may be controlled, as nearly as practicable, by the laws governing the condemnation of property by railroad corporations in this State, the City taking the position of the railroad corporation in any such case.~~ The City may also exercise the power of eminent domain in any other manner authorized or permitted by the Constitution and laws of this State, or in the manner and form that may be provided by ordinance of the governing body of the City, except as provided in subsection (b) and (c). The power of eminent domain hereby conferred shall include the right of the City to take the fee in the lands so condemned; and such power and authority shall include the right to condemn public property for such purposes.
- (b) Limitations to Eminent Domain. The City's power of eminent domain shall be limited to the taking of private property exclusively for the ownership and the use by the City, Eminent Domain shall be prohibited in those cases.
 - (1) in which the taking is motivated by economic development which involve the intent to resell any interest in the property acquired; and
 - (2) which involve a joint venture or a collaborative arrangement with a private entity.
- (c) Exceptions to Limitations. The limitations in subsection (b) of this section are not intended to apply to
 - (1) a non-adverse (or a willing and friendly) condemnation or a condemnation when the majority of partial interest owners consider the condemnation to be non-adverse; and

- (2) a condemnation necessary to cure the cloud on title to real estate or any other condition where a condemnation is deemed necessary in lieu of the transfer of title from a willing seller.

Sec. 7. - Street Powers and Improvements.

The City of Bellaire shall have exclusive dominion, control and jurisdiction in, upon, and over and under the public streets, avenues, alleys and highways of the City, and may provide for the improvement thereof by paving, re-paving, raising, draining, or otherwise and shall also include, but not be limited to, the right to supervise, regulate and otherwise control, locate, relocate, remove, or prohibit the location of, all utility pipes, lines, wires, or other property. In addition, the City shall have the power to lay out, establish, open, alter, widen, lower, extend, grade, abandon, discontinue, abolish, close, care for, pave, supervise, maintain and improve streets, alleys, sidewalks, parks, squares, public places and bridges; and regulate and/or restrict the use thereof; and require the removal from the streets, sidewalks, alleys and other public property or places of all obstructions, trespasses and/or encroachments of every nature or character.

~~Sec. 8. - Street Improvements.~~

~~The City of Bellaire shall have exclusive dominion, control and jurisdiction in, upon, and over and under the public streets, avenues, alleys and highways of the City, and may provide for the improvement thereof by paving, re-paving, raising, draining, or otherwise. The provisions of Chapter 106, 40th Legislature, First Called Session, Acts of 1927, together with existing amendments and all such amendments as hereinafter may be made, are expressly adopted and made a part of this Charter. Such exclusive dominion, control and jurisdiction in, upon, over and under the public streets, avenues, alleys and highways of the City shall also include, but not be limited to, the right to supervise, regulate and otherwise control, locate, relocate, remove, or prohibit the location of, all utility pipes, lines, wires, or other property.~~

Sec. 9. - Extending and Contracting City Limits by Action of the City Council.

The City Council shall have power by ordinance to fix the boundary limits of the City of Bellaire, and to provide for the extension of said boundary limits and the annexation of additional territory lying adjacent to said City, with or without the consent of the territory and/or inhabitants annexed. Upon the passage of such an ordinance by the City Council one time, it shall be published in the official newspaper of the City of Bellaire one time. After at least thirty (30) days have elapsed from the date of such publication, said ordinance in original or amended form as said city council in its judgment may determine, shall be acted upon again, and if passed the territory so annexed shall thereupon become a part of the City of Bellaire, and any inhabitants thereof shall be entitled to all rights and privileges of other citizens of said City, and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions and regulations of said City.

Any amendment to an ordinance annexing additional territory shall be advertised at least ten (10) days before final passage of the annexing ordinance, but any amendment eliminating from any such annexing ordinance property proposed to be annexed in the original ordinance or any amendment thereto need not be advertised.

Any area of the City may be disannexed pursuant to any procedure allowed under state law and whenever, in the opinion of the City Council, there exists within the corporate limits of the City a territory not suitable or necessary for City purposes, the City Council may discontinue said territory as part of the City by ordinance after conducting a public hearing on the matter.

Sec. 11. - Garbage Disposal.

The City Council shall have the right by ordinance to adopt and prescribe rules and regulations for the handling and disposition of all recycling, garbage, trash and rubbish within the City of Bellaire, and shall further have the right to fix charges and compensation to be charged by the City for the removal of recycling, garbage, trash and rubbish, and to provide rules and regulations for the collection of such charges and compensation.

Article II Sec. 14. - Municipal Court.

There is hereby established a Municipal Court of the City of Bellaire. The City Council shall appoint a Municipal Court Judge to serve a term of office of two (2) years. A Municipal Court Judge who is not reappointed by the 91st day following the expiration of a term of office shall, absent action by the City Council, continue to serve for another term of office beginning on the date the previous term of office expired. ~~term as it shall prescribe and~~ The City Council shall appoint such other associate judge or judges as it shall determine to be necessary and appropriate, for such terms as it shall provide. Such judge(s) may be removed for incompetency, misconduct or malfeasance. The compensation for the judge(s) of the Municipal Court shall be fixed by the City Council. The City Council shall have the power to make temporary or relief appointments of Municipal Court Judges, in the event of emergencies, for shorter periods of time than provided for the term(s) of the Municipal Court Judge and associate judge(s).

All costs and fines imposed by the Municipal Court, or by any court in cases appealed from judgments of the Municipal Court, shall be paid into the city treasury for the use and benefit of the City.

~~The City Council shall, by ordinance, appoint a Clerk of the Municipal Court and as many Deputy Clerks as shall be necessary. The Clerk of said Court or any Deputy City Clerk shall have power to administer oaths and affidavits, make certificates, affix the seal of said Court thereto and generally do and perform any and all acts usual and necessary by clerks of courts in issuing process of said courts and conducting the business thereof. In the event of the absence or unavailability of the Clerk or Deputy Clerk to serve, any Judge of the Municipal Court may appoint a temporary replacement who shall have the same powers and duties as herein provided for the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk.~~

Article X Initiative Referendum and Recall

Sec. 8. - Submission to Electors.

If the Council shall fail to pass an ordinance proposed by initiative petition, or shall pass it in a form different from that set forth in the petition therefor and not agreeable to the petitioners, or if the Council fails to repeal a referred ordinance, the proposed or referred ordinance shall be submitted to the electors of the City at a regular or special election to

be held on the earliest possible uniform election date of the State of Texas, after the City Clerk certifies the submission to the City Council. ~~The Council may, in its discretion, and if no regular election is to be held within such period shall, provide for a special election.~~

Sec. 19. - District Judge May Order Election.

Should the City Council fail or refuse to order any of the elections as provided for in this Article, when all the requirements for such elections have been complied with by the petitioning electors in conformity with this Article, then any individual with legal standing may bring suit in any court of competent jurisdiction for the purpose of enforcing the requirements of this Article of this Charter, ~~then it shall be the duty of any one of the District Judges of Harris County, Texas, upon proper application being made therefor to order such elections and to enforce the carrying into effect of the provisions of this Article of this Charter.~~

Article XI Sec. 4. - Right of Regulation.

All grants, renewals, extensions, or amendments of public utility franchises, whether it be so provided in the ordinance or not, shall be subject to the right of the City:

- (1) To repeal the same by ordinance at any time for failure to begin construction or operation within the time prescribed or otherwise to comply with the terms of the franchise, such power to be exercised only after due notice and hearing;
- (2) To require an adequate extension of plant and service, and the maintenance of the plant and fixtures at the highest reasonable standard of efficiency;
- (3) To establish reasonable standards of service and quality of products and prevent unjust discrimination in services or rates;
- (4)
 - a) To prescribe the form of accounts kept by each such utility; provided, that if the utility shall keep its accounts in accordance with the applicable uniform accounting standards, ~~systems of accounts for said utility prescribed by the National Association of Railroad and Public Utility Commissioners, the Federal Power Commission, the Federal Communications Commission, the Railroad Commission of Texas, their successor or successors, this shall be deemed sufficient compliance with this paragraph;~~
 - b) At any time to examine and audit the accounts and other records of any such utility and to require annual and other reports, including reports on local operations by each such public utility;
- (5) To impose such reasonable regulations and restrictions as may be deemed desirable or conducive to the safety, welfare, and accommodation of the public; and
- (6) To at any time require such compensation and rental as may be permitted by the laws of the State of Texas.

Article XII

Sec. 2. - Personal Interest.

~~No member of the Council or any officer or employee of the City shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect or by reason of ownership of stock in any corporation,~~

~~in any contract or in the sale to the City or to a contractor supplying the City, of any land or rights of interests in any land, material, supplies, or service. The City Council shall never authorize the expenditure of public funds for the development of any subdivision. Any willful violation of this section shall constitute malfeasance in office, and any officer or employee of the City found guilty thereof shall thereby forfeit his office or position. Any violation of this section with the knowledge express or implied, of the person or corporation contracting with the City shall render the contract voidable by the City Manager or the Council.~~

For purposes of this Section term "City Official" means any individual subject to the requirements of Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 171.

It is hereby prohibited for City Council Members or a City Official to violate the rules and regulations regarding conflicts of interests as set out in the Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 171.

Sec. 10. - Amending the Charter.

Amendments to this Charter may be framed and submitted to the electors of the City by a Charter commission in the manner provided by law for framing and submitting a new Charter. Amendments may also be proposed and submitted by ordinance, passed by a majority vote of the full membership of the Council, or by a petition signed by not less than twenty-five percentum (25%) of the number of those who voted at the last regular municipal election; provided, however that in the latter case the petition must bear the signatures of at least ten percentum (10%) of the qualified voters of the City. When a Charter amendment petition shall have been filed with the Council in conformity with the provisions of this Charter as to petitions for initiated ordinances, the Council shall forthwith provide by ordinance for submitting such proposed amendment to a vote of the electors. Any ordinance for submitting a Charter amendment to the electors shall provide that such amendment be submitted at the next regular municipal election ~~if one shall occur not less than sixty (60) nor more than one hundred twenty (120) days after the passage of the ordinance; otherwise, it shall provide for the submission of the amendment at a special election to be called and held within the time aforesaid.~~ Not less than thirty (30) days prior to such election, the City clerk shall mail a copy of the proposed amendment or amendments to each qualified voter in said City as appears from the latest rolls of the tax collector. If a proposed amendment be approved by a majority of the electors voting thereon, it shall become a part of the Charter at the time fixed therein. Each amendment shall be confined to one subject; and when more than one amendment shall be submitted at the same time, they shall be so submitted as to enable the electors to vote on each amendment separately.

MEASURE B: Relating to Qualifications of Council Members.

Article II

Sec. 2. - Qualifications.

To be eligible to be a candidate for, or elected to, office as Mayor or City Councilman of the City of Bellaire, or to continue to hold any such office, a person must:

- (1) Be a United States citizen;
- (2) Be twenty-one (21) years of age or older on the first day of the term to be filled at the election;
- (3) Have not been determined mentally incompetent by a final judgment of a court;
- (4) Have not been finally convicted of a felony from which the person has not been pardoned or otherwise released from the resulting disabilities;
- (5) Have resided continuously in the State of Texas and within the corporate limits of the City of Bellaire for twelve (12) months immediately preceding the filing deadline of the regular election; and
- (6) Be a qualified, registered voter of the State of Texas, County of Harris.

In addition, all candidates or persons elected to office as Mayor or City Councilman of the City of Bellaire shall meet all other requirements for office holders as may, from time to time, be specified by the Constitution and general laws of the State of Texas. If, at any time, any person holding the office of Mayor or City Councilman of the City of Bellaire no longer possesses all of the qualifications specified in this Section or is convicted of a felony or an offense involving moral turpitude while in office, such office shall, after a public hearing and determination by City Council pursuant to Section 16 be declared ~~immediately and automatically become~~ vacant.

Sec. 16 - Council to be Judge of Qualifications of its Members; Hearings; Process.

~~The Council shall be the judge of the election and qualifications of its members, and shall have the power to remove any member for malfeasance or nonfeasance in office, after public hearing, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the whole Council; for such purpose it shall have power to subpoena witnesses and require the production of records.~~

A General. The Council shall be the judge of the election and qualifications of its members, and shall have the power to investigate and to remove any member for malfeasance or nonfeasance in office, after public hearing, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the whole Council; for such purpose it shall have power to administer oaths, subpoena witnesses, compel the production of records books, papers, and other evidence material to the inquiry. The City Council shall provide, by ordinance, penalties for contempt in failing or refusing to obey any such subpoena or to produce any such books, papers or other evidence. The City Council shall have the power to punish any such contempt in the manner provided by such ordinance.

B Hearings Process for Forfeitures of Office and Prohibitions.

1. All hearings held under this subsection shall be conducted in open session, except that the City Council may conduct a closed session to get advice from its attorney pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act;

2. The office holder subject to any investigation and/or hearing under this section shall be entitled to written notice of the specific allegations made against them;
3. A special meeting shall be called to hold the hearing; the office holder who is the subject of the hearing shall not sit at the dais and shall not participate in deliberation or vote; and City Council shall adopt by ordinance rules of procedures to be followed which rules shall not be amended or repealed for a particular public hearing after written notice has been provided to the office holder; except and unless, agreed to by the office holder;
4. The City Council shall state the nature of the hearing and the allegations to be considered, shall be provided the results of any investigation and a presentation of the evidence against the office holder including, but not limited to testimony from individuals; the individual who is subject to the hearing shall be provided an opportunity to respond to the allegations and present any relevant evidence including, but not limited to, testimony from individuals; and City Council may ask questions of any individual; and
5. No public comment shall be allowed unless agreed to by a majority vote of the members of City Council present and rules for public comment, if allowed, shall be set by City Council.

MEASURE C: Relating to Council Stipend.

Article II Sec. 3. – ~~Compensation~~ Stipend of Members of the City Council.

The Mayor shall receive ~~as compensation~~ a stipend for his services ~~the sum of Seventy-five~~ Four-Hundred Dollars (~~\$400.00 75.00~~) per month.

Each Councilman shall receive ~~as compensation the sum~~ a stipend of ~~Ten Dollars (\$10.00)~~ for each meeting of the City Council attended by him, provided that no Councilman shall receive a greater compensation than Fifty Two-Hundred Dollars (~~\$200.00 50.00~~) per month.

The stipend may be changed by the Council; however, no increase shall take effect unless ratified by a majority of the voters in the next regular City election. The City shall pay or reimburse reasonable expenses incurred by the Mayor or Council Members in the performance of specific duties, limited to the amount appropriated for such expenses in the current budget.

MEASURE D: Relating to the fine for failing to obey a subpoena

Article II Sec. 20. - Investigation by Council.

The Council shall have the power to inquire into the conduct of any office, department, agency, or officer of the City and to make investigations as to municipal affairs, and for the purpose may subpoena witnesses, administer oaths, and compel the production of books, papers, and other evidence. Failure to obey such subpoena or to produce books, papers or other evidence as ordered under the provisions of this section shall constitute a misdemeanor and shall be punishable by fine not to exceed ~~Two Hundred (\$200.00)~~ Three Hundred (\$300.00) Dollars for each offense.

MEASURE E: Relating to clarifying currently ambiguous language in the Charter.

Article II. The Council

Sec. 5. - Mayor Pro Tempore.

The City Council shall elect a Mayor Pro Tempore, who shall act as, and have all the powers of the Mayor during the absence or disability of the Mayor, and if a vacancy should occur in the office of Mayor, shall ~~become~~ act as, and have all the powers of the, Mayor until the next regular election, at which election a Mayor shall be elected to fill the full or unexpired term, as the case may be. The Mayor Pro Tempore's office shall not be considered vacant during any such time he or she is acting as the Mayor.

Sec. 11. - Council Not to Interfere in Appointments or Removals.

~~Neither the Council nor any of its members shall direct the appointment of any person to office, and such power is confided solely to the City Manager. The City Council shall have no power to remove any person appointed by the City Manager and shall have only the power to appoint and/or remove the City Manager. The Council shall deal with the administrative service solely through the City Manager, and neither the Council nor any member thereof shall give orders to any subordinate of the City Manager, either publicly or privately.~~

Neither the City Council nor the Mayor or any Council Member shall in any manner dictate the appointment or removal of any city administrative officers or employees whom the City Manager or any of his subordinates are empowered to appoint, unless otherwise provided in this Charter. Further, except for the purpose of inquiries and investigations, unless otherwise provided in this Charter, the City Council, Council Members and the Mayor shall deal with City officers and employees who are subject to the direction and supervision of the City Manager solely through the City Manager, and neither the City Council nor Council Members nor the Mayor shall give orders to any such officer or employee, either publicly or privately.

Sec. 13. - City Clerk.

The Council shall appoint ~~some person to serve as a~~ City Clerk of the Council. The City Clerk shall report to the City Council. He shall give notices of its meetings, shall keep the official copy of this Charter ~~and the journal of the Council's proceedings,~~ shall authenticate by his signature and record in full in a book kept for the purpose all ordinances and resolutions, and shall perform such other duties as the City Manager shall assign to him.

Sec. 15. - Meetings of Council.

The City Council shall meet regularly at such times as may be prescribed by its rules, but not less frequently than twice each month. All meetings of the Council shall be subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act ~~open to the public;~~ special meetings shall be called by the City Clerk upon request of the Mayor, City Manager, or a majority of the members of the Council.

Four (4) members of the Council, of whom the Mayor shall be counted as one, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The affirmative vote of four (4) members shall be required for the transaction of business. A smaller number may adjourn from time to time.

Article X Sec. 8. - Submission to Electors.

If the Council shall fail to pass an ordinance proposed by initiative petition, or shall pass it in a form different from that set forth in the petition therefor and not agreeable to the committee of the petitioners, or if the Council fails to repeal a referred ordinance, the proposed or referred ordinance shall be submitted to the electors of the City at a ~~regular or~~ special election to be held on the earliest possible uniform election date of the State of Texas, after the City Clerk certifies the submission to the City Council. The Council may, in its discretion, and if no regular election is to be held within such period shall, provide for a special election.

MEASURE F: Relating to Vacancies on Council.

Article II Sec. 6. - Vacancies in Council.

Vacancies in office of Mayor Council, the effective date of which shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Election Code, shall be filled by a candidate possessing all of the qualifications outlined in Section 2 of this Article, at an election called for that purpose pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Constitution and the Texas Election Code.

In the event of a vacancy in the office of City Council Member, the effective date of which shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Election Code, if there are 365 days or more remaining on the term of the vacated office, the City Council shall call a special election to fill such vacancy. If there are fewer than 365 days remaining in the term of the vacant office, the City Council may, by majority vote of the remaining Members of City Council, at its discretion, leave the office vacant, appoint a new Council Member to fill such vacancy or call a special election to fill such vacancy.

MEASURE G: Relating to the City Manager's authority to sign documents.

Article III Sec. 2. - The City Manager; Powers and Duties.

The City Manager shall be the chief executive officer and the head of the administrative branch of the City government. He shall be responsible to the Council for the proper administration of all affairs of the City and to that end he shall have the power and shall be required to:

- (a) Appoint and remove all officers and employees of the City appointed by him, except as otherwise provided by this Charter, and except as he may authorize the head of a department to appoint and remove subordinates in such department;
- (b) Prepare the budget annually and submit it to the Council and be responsible for its administration after adoption;
- (c) Prepare and submit to the Council as of the end of the fiscal year a complete

report on the finances and administrative activities of the City for the preceding year;

- (d) Keep the Council advised of the financial condition and future need of the City and make such recommendations as may seem to him desirable; and
- (e) Sign all documents, contracts and conveyances made or entered into by the City, and all bonds, pursuant to any relevant policy adopted by City Council, except where the City Council has authorized the Mayor to sign said document as provided for in Article II Section 4 of this Charter.
- (ef) Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by this Charter or required of him by the Council, not inconsistent with this Charter.

MEASURE H: Relating to the authority to borrow money.

Sec. 1. - Power to Incur Indebtedness by Issuing Bonds, Warrants and Notes.

The City of Bellaire shall have the right and power to borrow money on the credit of the City for any lawful public purpose, including without limitation permanent public improvements, as may be determined by the City Council, and to issue bonds, warrants, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness of the City therefor in accordance with state law.

~~Sec. 2. - Bond Ordinance; Vote Required.~~

~~The issuance of tax bonds must be approved by a majority of the qualified voters voting at an election called for that purpose.~~

~~The City shall authorize the issuance of bonds by a "bond ordinance" passed by the affirmative votes of the majority of all members of its Council. Revenue bonds may be issued by the Council in accordance with state law.~~

~~The bond ordinance and the manner of conducting the election shall in all respects conform to this Charter and the general laws of the State.~~

~~Sec. 3. - Issuance of Bonds.~~

~~When an issue of bonds has been authorized, the City shall have the power to issue serial bonds or otherwise as in its opinion may seem best as provided in the ordinance authorizing their issuance, not to exceed thirty (30) years. However, all character of securities issued for street improvements shall be for a period of not exceeding twenty (20) years. All bonds shall specify on their face for what purpose they are issued, and they shall be invalid if sold for less than their par value, plus accrued interest. When any such bonds are issued by the City a fund shall be provided to pay the bonds at maturity. The regulations of this section shall likewise govern warrants, notes and other evidences of indebtedness.~~

~~Sec. 4. - Public Sale.~~

~~All bonds issued under this Charter shall be sold at public sale upon sealed proposals after at least ten (10) days' notice published at least once in a publication carrying municipal bond notices and devoted primarily to financial news, and at least ten (10) days notice published at least once in the official newspaper of the City.~~

~~If no satisfactory bid is received under the above procedure, the Council may have the power to negotiate a sale at a better price within a ten-day period following the opening of bids; otherwise, the sale of bonds must be readvertised.~~

~~Sec. 5. - Register of Bonds.~~

~~The City Council shall cause to be kept for and on behalf of the City a complete register and set of books showing all bonds, warrants and other evidences of indebtedness issued by the City, the date and amount thereof, the rate of interest, maturity, all bonds, warrants or other evidences of indebtedness surrendered, all transactions of the City Council having reference to the refunding of any of the indebtedness of the City, and all other information that may be desired or required. Records with reference to bonds and warrants and other evidences of indebtedness shall be kept separately. When bonds, or warrants, or other evidences of indebtedness, or their coupons, are paid, their payment or cancellation shall be noted in said register.~~

MEASURE I: Relating to the administration of the City's finances.

Article VII Finance Administration

Sec. 4. - Director of Finance; Powers and Duties.

Under the direction of the City Manager, the Director of Finance shall have charge of the administration of the financial affairs of the City and to that end, he shall have authority and shall be required to:

- (1) Supervise and be responsible for the disbursement of all moneys and have control over all expenditures to ensure that budget appropriations are not exceeded;
- (2) Maintain a general accounting system for the city government and each of its offices, departments and agencies; keep books for and exercise financial budgetary control over each office, department and agency; keep separate accounts for the items of appropriation contained in the city budget, each of which accounts shall show the amount of the appropriation, the amounts paid therefrom, the unpaid obligations against it and the unencumbered balance; require reports of receipts and disbursements from each receiving and spending agency of the city government to be made daily or at such intervals as he may deem expedient;
- (3) Submit to the City Council through the City Manager a monthly statement of all receipts and disbursements in sufficient detail to show the exact financial condition of the City;
- (4) Prepare, as of the end of each fiscal year, a complete financial statement and report;
- (5) Collect all taxes, special assessments, license fees and other revenues of the City or for whose collection the City is responsible and receive all money receivable by the City from the state or federal government, or from any court, or from any office, department or agency of this City;
- (6) ~~Have custody of all public funds belonging to or under the control of the City, or any office, department or agency of the city government, and deposit all funds~~

~~coming into his hands in such depository or depositories as may be designated by the City Council, subject to the requirements of law in force from time to time as to the furnishing of bond or the deposit of securities and the payment of interest on deposits. All such interest shall be the property of the City and shall be accounted for and credited to the proper account;~~

- ~~(7) Have custody of all investments and invested funds of the city government, or in possession of such government in a fiduciary capacity, and have the safekeeping of all bonds and notes of the City and the receipt and delivery of city bonds and notes for transfer, registration or exchange;~~
- ~~(8) Supervise and be responsible for the purchase, storage and distribution of all supplies, materials, equipment and other articles used by any office, department or agency of the city government; and~~
- ~~(9) Approve all proposed expenditures; unless he shall certify that there is an unencumbered balance of appropriation and available funds, no expenditure shall be made.~~

~~Sec. 8. Fees Shall be Paid to City Government.~~

~~All fees for City services received by any officer or employee shall belong to the City Government, and shall be paid to the Department of Finance at such times as required by the Director of Finance.~~

~~Sec. 12. - Accounting of Property.~~

~~The Director of Finance shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, reliable accounts of the City's investment in permanent property by departments, and shall fix responsibility for the custody and property use of all City owned equipment, structures, and land.~~

~~He shall be responsible for the accounting control of all permanent property of the City.~~

~~As used herein, the term "equipment" means all items of movable property purchased by, or assigned to, a department or division which cost or have a value of Five Dollars (\$5.00) each, or more, and can normally be expected to have a useful life of one year or more.~~

~~The head of each department shall be held accountable for the safekeeping of all movable equipment in his department.~~

~~Sec. 16. - City May Carry Own Paper.~~

~~The City shall have the power to purchase or otherwise acquire improvement certificates and/or mechanic's lien contracts of the owners of property abutting or adjacent to public improvements authorized by the City Council and thereafter constructed in the City. Moneys from the City's general fund may be used for such purchases and/or the proceeds of bonds may be used where such proceeds could lawfully be expended directly for such improvements, or in aid thereof.~~

~~Sec. 17. - Borrowing in Anticipation of Property Taxes.~~

~~In any budget year, in anticipation of the collection of the property tax for such year, whether levied or to be levied in such year, the Council may by resolution authorize the borrowing of money by the issuance of negotiable notes of the City, each of which shall be designated "tax anticipation note of the year 19____" (stating the budget year). Such notes shall mature and be payable not later than the end of the fiscal year in which the original notes shall have been issued.~~

~~Sec. 18. - Borrowing in Anticipation of Other Revenues.~~

~~In any budget year, in anticipation of the collection or receipt of other revenues of that budget year, the Council may by resolution authorize the borrowing of money by the issuance of negotiable notes of the City, each of which shall be designated "special revenue note for the year 19__" (stating the budget year). Such notes may be renewed from time to time, but all such notes, together with the renewals, shall mature and be payable not later than the end of the fiscal year in which the original notes shall have been issued.~~

~~Sec. 19. - Sales of Notes, Report of Sale.~~

~~All notes issued pursuant to this article may be sold at not less than par and accrued interest at private sale by the Director of Finance without previous advertisement, but such sale shall be authorized by the Council.~~

MEASURE J: Relating to unnecessary provisions.

Article II

Sec. 17. - Rules of Procedure; ~~Journal.~~

~~The Council shall determine its own rules and order of business. It shall keep a journal of its proceedings and the journal shall be open to public inspection.~~

Sec. 21. - Independent Audit.

Prior to the end of each fiscal year, the Council shall designate a certified public accountant who, as of the end of that fiscal year, shall make an independent audit of accounts and other evidences of financial transactions of the city government, and shall submit a sworn report to the Council. Notice shall be ~~given~~ provided by publication in on the official ~~newspaper~~ website of the City of Bellaire that the annual audit is on file at the City Hall for inspection. Such accountant shall have no personal interest, direct or indirect, in the fiscal affairs of the city government. They shall not maintain accounts or record of the City business, but, within specifications approved by the Council, shall post-audit the books and documents kept by the Department of Finance and any separate or subordinate accounts kept by any other office, department or agency of the city government. Such accountants may make monthly checks, or a general audit at more frequent intervals as the Council may direct.

MEASURE K: Relating to Initiative.

Article X Sec. 1. - Power of Initiative.

The electors shall have power to propose any ordinance except an ordinance appropriating money or authorizing the levy of taxes, and to adopt or reject the same at the polls, such power being known as the initiative. Any initiative ordinance may be submitted to the Council by a petition signed by qualified electors of the City equal in number to at least six percent (6%) of the number of voters registered to vote at the last general City election ~~twenty-five percent (25%) of the number of votes cast at the last regular municipal election~~; provided, however, that the petition shall contain the signatures of at least two hundred (200) qualified electors of the City. Bond elections may be initiated by petition to the City Council as above provided.

MEASURE L: Relating to recall petitions.

Article X Sec. 14. - Recall Petitions.

The recall petition to be effective must be returned and filed with the City Clerk within thirty (30) days after the filing of the affidavit required in Section 13 and it must be signed by qualified electors of the City equal in number to at least fourteen percent (14%) of the number of voters registered to vote at the last general City election ~~fifty-one percent (51%) of the total number of votes cast at the last general municipal election~~, and shall conform to the provisions of Section 3 herein. No petition paper shall be accepted as part of a petition unless it bears the signature of the City Clerk as required in Section 13 herein.

MEASURE M: Relating to referendum.

Article X Sec. 2. - Power of Referendum.

The electors shall have power to approve or reject at the polls any ordinance passed by the Council, or submitted by the Council to a vote of the electors, such power being known as the referendum. Ordinances submitted to the Council by initiative petition and passed by the Council without change shall be subject to the referendum in the same manner as other ordinances. Within twenty (20) days after the enactment by the Council of any ordinance which is subject to a referendum, a petition signed by qualified electors of the City equal in number to at least ~~twenty-five percent (25%) of the number of votes cast at the last preceding regular municipal election~~ six percent (6%) of the number of voters registered to vote at the last general City election may be filed with the City Clerk requesting that any such ordinance be either repealed or submitted to a vote of the electors; provided, however, that such petition shall contain the signatures of at least two hundred (200) qualified electors of the City.

MEASURE N: Relating to referendum.

Article X Sec. 2. - Power of Referendum.

The electors shall have power to approve or reject at the polls any ordinance passed by the Council, or submitted by the Council to a vote of the electors, such power being known as the referendum. Ordinances submitted to the Council by initiative petition and passed by the Council without change shall be subject to the referendum in the same manner as other ordinances. Within ~~twenty (20)~~ thirty (30) days after the enactment by the Council of any ordinance which is subject to a referendum, a petition signed by qualified electors of the City equal in number to at least twenty-five percent

(25%) of the number of votes cast at the last preceding regular municipal election may be filed with the City Clerk requesting that any such ordinance be either repealed or submitted to a vote of the electors; provided, however, that such petition shall contain the signatures of at least two hundred (200) qualified electors of the City.

MEASURE O: Relating to franchises.

Article XI Sec. 2. - Franchises; Power of Council.

The City Council shall have power by ordinance to grant, amend, renew and extend all franchises of all public utilities of every character operating within the City of Bellaire and for such purposes is granted full power. All ordinances granting, amending, renewing, or extending franchises for public utilities shall be read at ~~three~~ two (2) separate regular meetings of the City Council with such readings being at least ten (10) days apart, and shall not be finally passed until thirty (30) days after the first reading; and no such ordinance shall take effect until sixty (60) days after its final passage; and pending such time, the full text of such ordinance shall be published once each week for ~~four (4)~~ two (2) consecutive weeks in the official newspaper of the City of Bellaire, and the expense of such publication shall be borne by the proponent of the franchise. No public utility franchise shall be transferable except with the approval of the Council expressed by ordinance.

MEASURE P: Relating to transitory provisions

Article XI Sec. 8. - Franchise Records.

~~Within six (6) months after this Charter takes effect~~ Every public utility and every owner of a public utility franchise shall file with the City, as may be prescribed by ordinance, certified copies of all franchises owned or claimed, or under which such utility is operated in the City of Bellaire. The City shall compile and maintain a public record of public utility franchises.

MEASURE Q: Relating to Non-Substantive Revisions.

A. Proposed Charter Language.

~~Sec. 13. -- Rearrangement and Renumbering of Charter and Elimination.~~

~~The City Council shall have the power by ordinance to renumber and rearrange all articles, sections and paragraphs of this Charter, or any amendments thereto. The City Council shall have the further power by ordinance to eliminate gender-specific references within the various provisions of this Charter and to substitute gender-neutral terms, as it shall deem appropriate. Upon the passage of any such ordinances, a copy thereof, certified by the City Clerk, shall be forwarded to the Secretary of State of the State of Texas for filing.~~

Sec. 13. Non-Substantive Revisions

The Council shall have the power, by ordinance, to make the following non-substantive revisions to the Charter, so long as such revisions do not affect the intent of the Charter:
1) renumbering and rearranging all articles, sections, and paragraphs of this Charter or

any amendments; 2) to make any grammatical or typographical corrections to this Charter; and 3) to make the Charter gender neutral. Upon the passage of any such ordinance, a copy certified by the City Clerk shall be forwarded to the Clerk of the State for filing.

MEASURE R: Relating to a global change to make the City Charter gender neutral.

Change “Councilman” or “Council Man” to “Council Member” as well as replace the pronouns “he” or “his” with the position title referenced by the pronoun. Example:

Article II Sec. 9. – Appointment of City Manager.

The Council shall appoint an officer of the City who shall have the title of City Manager, and who shall have the powers and perform the duties provided in this Charter. No ~~Councilman~~ Council Member shall receive such appointment during the term for which ~~he~~ the Council Member shall have been elected, nor within one (1) year after the expiration of ~~his~~ the Council Member's term